
 

Dinas a Sir Abertawe 
 
Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod 
 
Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod  

 

Panel Perfformiad Craffu - Addysg 
 

Lleoliad: 
 

O bell drwy Microsoft Teams 
 

Dyddiad: 
 

Dydd Iau, 21 Hydref 2021 

Amser: 
 

4.00 pm 

Cynullydd: Y Cynghorydd  Lyndon Jones MBE 
 

Aelodaeth: 
Cynghorwyr: C Anderson, A M Day, S J Gallagher, D W Helliwell, B Hopkins, 
L James, S M Jones, M A Langstone a/ac L J Tyler-Lloyd 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig: D Anderson-Thomas a/ac A Roberts 
 

 
Agenda 

Rhif y Dudalen. 
1   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
 
2   Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.  

 www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau  
 
3   Gwahardd Pleidleisiau Chwip a Datgan Chwipiau'r Pleidiau  
 
4   Cofnodion 1 - 3 
 
5   Cwestiynau gan y Cyhoedd  

 Rhaid cyflwyno cwestiynau’n ysgrifenedig, cyn hanner dydd ar y 
diwrnod gwaith cyn y cyfarfod fan bellaf. Rhaid i gwestiynau ymwneud 
ag eitemau ar yr agenda. 

 

 
6   Diweddariad Llafar - Aflonyddu mewn Ysgolion  
 
7   Cynllun Strategol y Gymraeg mewn Addysg (sut mae'r cynllun 10 

mlynedd newydd yn cael ei ddatblygu, trosolwg o'r gofynion a'r 
cynnydd a wnaed) 

 

 
8   Y diweddaraf am y cwricwlwm newydd gan gynnwys cynnydd o 

ran ei weithredu 
4 - 7 

 
9   Cynllun Gwaith 2021-2022 8 
 
 

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Iau, 18 Tachwedd 2021 ar 4.00 pm 

http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau


 

 

 

 
 
Huw Evans 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Dydd Iau, 14 Hydref 2021 

Cyswllt: Michelle Roberts, Craffu 
 



 
 

 

City and County of Swansea 
 

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – 
Education 

 
Remotely via Teams  

Thursday, 30 September 2021 at 4.00 pm 

 
Present: Councillor L R Jones (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s) 
C Anderson A M Day S J Gallagher 
D W Helliwell B Hopkins L James 
S M Jones M A Langstone  
 
Co-opted Member(s) Co-opted Member(s) Co-opted Member(s) 
D Anderson-Thomas A Roberts  
 
Other Attendees  
Robert Smith Cabinet Member - Education Improvement, Learning & 

Skills 
 
Officer(s)  
Damien Beech Head of Primary Phase Unit 
Michelle Roberts Scrutiny Officer 
 
Apologies for Absence 
Councillor(s): None 
 

 
1 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 

 
None 
 

2 Prohibition of Whipped Votes and Declaration of Party Whips 
 
None 
 

3 Letters and Minutes 
 
Letters and Minutes were reviewed and accepted by the Panel. 
 

4 Public Questions 
 
No public questions were received. 
 

5 How are we improving schools in Swansea? (How are School Improvement 
Advisers supporting, evaluating and monitoring schools in Swansea) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Education (30.09.2021) 
Cont’d 

 

The Panel thanked Cllr Robert Smith and Damien Beech for attending the meeting to 
present the report on School Improvement and answer the Panel’s questions. 
 
Some of the issues the report covered included: 

 Context and background of the service 

 The work of the School Improvement Team and support for schools in Covid 
period 

 How schools are using Pupil Development Grant 

 Continuity of learning support including sharing of good practice and 
development of policies, documents and resources for schools 

 Professional learning for teaching and schools staff 

 Supporting Governing bodies and continued training session, remotely. 

 Readiness for the City Deal 
 
The following points were discussed: 

 The Panel asked about the current situation with primary school attainment. The 

Panel has previously had concerns about levels of attainment for those pupils in 

receipt of eFSM.  They asked, when after Covid, we will be in a position to focus 

back on this issue and again look at raising the attainment of eFSM?  The Panel 

were pleased to hear that there is an evidence based approach to the spending 

of the Pupil Development Grant looking at what works. The Panel would be 

interested to see at some point in the future, information on the correlation 

between how PDG is spent and increased attainment.  The Panel heard that in 

terms of measuring attainment, the Welsh Government have removed foundation 

phase teacher assessments and end of key stage two teacher assessments, 

which is a good thing but a new way to measure attainment needs developed.  In 

future, assessment arrangements will be included in the design of the new 

curriculum.  One good question for the Welsh Government will be how we as a 

council, or indeed as a country, can measure whether the new Curriculum in 

Wales is having the desired effect. They heard that this will be an ongoing 

question that we will need to keep asking as schools develop that new 

assessment process.   

 The Panel also heard that in the discussions with schools, and particularly in the 

support visits for this autumn term, school improvement advisers will be looking 

at how well pupils are doing.  They found in visits last year, which will likely be the 

case this year too, that it is the basic skills that some of their pupils need to focus 

on. But before that it is essential that they focus on pupil wellbeing, if pupils are 

not happy or comfortable in school it is difficult to learn. 

 The Panel asked how things work in terms of commissioning Headteacher’s and 

what sort of impact this has on the school releasing them.   We heard that the 

commissioned Headteacher’s log their days out of school and the school is 

financially remunerated for that time. This then gives an opportunity for say the 

Deputy to come out of class and have the experience of running the school for a 

day or series of days.  It is good professional development for senior staff in 

schools.  It is also good professional development for the heads as well visiting 

other schools and seeing different practice.  The Cabinet Member said that it is 

not an easy thing to do, but it does give other people within school the 

Page 2



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Education (30.09.2021) 
Cont’d 

 

opportunity to develop professionally. To develop those leadership skills and 

hopefully building upon the pool of talent and succession.  Succession planning is 

so important.  

 We asked what the key challenges over the next 12 months are for the Team 

when supporting schools. The Panel heard that Covid is still a key issue and the 

pressures schools are facing with this and then the balance with day to day 

duties.  The other key areas are the introduction of the new Curriculum and the 

Additional Learning Needs Reform.  The Panel heard that it is important for the 

School Improvement Team to ensure schools are moving forward with all of 

these.  The Panel were keen to see that backfilling and associated budget 

provision to continue so the financial impact for schools of releasing a 

commission Headteacher can be protected. 

 
6 Work Programme 2021/2022 

 
The Panel reviewed the Work Programme and have asked for an update on the 
issue of Harassment in School that was deferred from earlier in the year. 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.45 pm 
 
 

Chair 
 

Page 3



 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Education Improvement, Learning and Skills 
 

Education Scrutiny Performance Panel – 21 October 2021 
 

New Curriculum Progress Update 

 
Purpose: To brief/update the Scrutiny Panel on school improvement 

 

Content: A briefing/update on: 
1. CfW 2022 Progress Update 

 
Councillors are 
being asked to: 
 

Consider the information provided and give views  

Lead Councillor: Councillor R Smith, Cabinet Member for Education Improvement, 
Learning and Skills 
 

Lead Officer &  
Report Author: 

Damien Beech, Head of School Improvement Team (Temporary)  
Tel: 07810506259  
E-mail: Damien.Beech@swansea.gov.uk  

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Curriculum reform is a significant part of the Welsh Government’s strategy to 

improve education in Wales.  The overall strategy is articulated in the Welsh 
Government’s action plan for 2017-2021, Education in Wales: Our national 
mission. 
 

1.2 At the end of January 2020, the Welsh Government published the final version 
of the Curriculum for Wales along with a summary of the proposed legislation 
that is intended to lay the foundations for the start of the new curriculum in 
September 2022.  The framework is high-level and requires schools to create a 
curriculum based on the needs of their learners.  As a result, schools and 
teachers have the significant responsibility of selecting and organising the 
knowledge, skills and experiences that learners will need to acquire to embody 
the four purposes. 
 

1.3 To support schools with developing the new curriculum, the Education 
Directorate set up a working group – Swansea Curriculum, Teaching and 
Assessment Group, SCTAG – which developed a four-phase local 
implementation plan based on strong evidence-based approaches.   
 

1.4 The four-phase plan was launched in February 2020 at the Headteacher Cross-
phase Conference – The Science of Learning.  Professor Stuart Kime led the 

Page 4

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Damien.Beech@swansea.gov.uk


conference and delivered a session on the best evidenced-informed 
approaches to curriculum design, teaching and learning, and assessment.  The 
evidence-based approaches complement the Schools as Learning Organisation 
model and the Teaching and Leadership Standards.  These both expect 
teachers to take responsibility for their professional learning by keeping abreast 
of research findings to inform their practice. 
 

1.5 Shortly after the launch of the four-phase plan, schools went into lockdown due 
to the pandemic.  Since that point, the work of SCTAG has been paused as 
schools have grappled with the challenges created by the pandemic.   
 

1.6 In November 2020, the Welsh Government released its version of a four-
phased implementation plan entitled, The Journey to 2022.  This has 
subsequently been updated in September with, Curriculum for Wales: the 
journey to curriculum roll-out. 
 

1.7 In the summer term, 2021, the Welsh Government announced that secondary 
schools could opt to delay the implementation of the curriculum to September 
2023. If secondary schools take this option, they will need to implement their 
new curriculum for both Year 7 and Year 8 at the same time. 
 

1.8 In September 2021, the Welsh Government released updated guidance for the 
implementation of the new curriculum, Curriculum for Wales: the journey to 
curriculum rollout.  The guidance has been updated in the light of the pandemic 
and sets out expectations that curriculum design and learning should focus 
both on: 

 ‘renew’ - adapting and reprioritising learning and teaching to ensure 
learners progress in light of COVID-19  

 ‘reform’ - preparing for the roll-out of Curriculum for Wales 
 

2. Briefing/Main Body of Report 
 
2.1 Overall, the impact of the pandemic has slowed the LA’s and schools’ 

preparations for the new curriculum.   
 
2.2 Despite the pandemic, elements of curriculum development and related aspects 

continued.  For example, schools continued to share good practice related to 
teaching and learning through our CoL and SCASEN networks.  Practice 
shared has had a strong focus on developing effective teaching and learning 
approaches through digital technology.  This has led to many innovative 
approaches being developed that will support the new curriculum well. 
 

2.3 In addition, during the pandemic, the training delivery and offer to governors 
has been modernised.  Virtual sessions have brought about an increase to 
governor attendance.  Curriculum-related training from school improvement 
officers has focussed on Blended Learning, Curriculum Questions, Assessment 
and Evidenced-Informed Governors.  Feedback from the sessions has been 
positive and the training has supported governors in their understanding of 
developing evidence-informed approaches to curriculum development.  

  

Page 5



2.4 At the national level, despite the pandemic, the Welsh Government pressed 
ahead with its curriculum reform agenda.  In March 2021, the Curriculum for 
Wales bill was passed, a review looking at how BAME aspects should be 
developed in the curriculum was published, and Relationships and Sexuality 
Education (RSE) and Religion, Values and Ethics (RVE) statutory frameworks 
were developed.  Furthermore, in the summer term of 2021, eight curriculum-
related consultations were released, as well as a Qualifications Wales 
consultation on qualifications reform. 
 

2.5 To relieve pressure on schools, officers developed draft consultation responses 
to share with schools.  Senior leaders hugely appreciated these, as they were 
able to use them to support their responses.   In September, another 
consultation was released on Assessment arrangements: subordinate 
legislation resultant of the Curriculum and Assessment (Wales) Act 2021.  This 
closes on 31 October 2021. 

 
2.6 In the summer term, 2021, the Welsh Government approached Swansea 

Council to develop a trial for the new RSE framework.  Seventeen schools are 
involved.  The trial will run in the first half of the autumn term and it will consider 
how the schools use the new framework to plan RSE in the new curriculum.  It 
will also consider any community sensitivities related to this aspect of the 
curriculum.  Key findings from the trial will be shared with schools across 
Wales. 
 

2.7 Swansea’s SACRE provided the main feedback to the consultation with the 
RVE framework.  Its main concerns being that the guidance was not clear 
enough and would not provide teachers with sufficient support for planning and 
teaching of RVE.  Overall, SACRE noted that the schools would benefit from 
more examples of evidence-informed practice to support them in their planning 
and resourcing. 
 

2.8 The Education Directorate has appointed a 0.4 RVE/RSE adviser to support the 
work around the new statutory frameworks for RVE and RSE as well as 
supporting SACRE in their duties to have a locally agreed syllabus for RVE. 
 

2.9 To support schools with curriculum, teaching and learning and assessment, 
local and regional officers have facilitated programmes for schools to 
participate in, such as: 

 Professor Mick Waters 

 The Great Teaching Toolkit 

 5 steps to the curriculum 
 

3. Conclusions/Key Points Summary 
 
3.1 In light of the Welsh Government’s, Curriculum for Wales: the journey to 

curriculum rollout, officers will need to consider re-establishing SCTAG and 
updating the local implementation plan.   

 
3.2 Concerns remain over schools capacity to engage fully with curriculum reform.  

Currently, the pandemic is affecting school staff significantly, and the ability of 
schools to release staff for curriculum-related development is difficult.  The 

Page 6



Welsh Government has recognised this challenge, somewhat, in its new 
guidance with a more sensitive language around readiness, for example, it 
states: “We do not expect schools to have perfected or completed all aspects of 
curriculum design reform by roll-out”. 
 

3.3 A significant degree of high-quality professional learning is taking place through 
support programmes, training and school networks.  This needs to continue in a 
way that is sensitive to the challenges that schools still face in the pandemic.  
 

3.4 School Improvement Advisers and Curriculum Advisers will need to sensitively 
monitor and support schools in areas related to curriculum development. 

 
4. Legal implications  
 
4.1 There are no legal implications. 
 
5. Finance Implications 
 
5.1 There are no finance implications. 
 
6. Equality & Engagement Implications 
 
6.1      The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and the 

Socio-economic Duty (Wales) must, in the exercise of their functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Ensure that decisions do not impact negatively on people with fewer 
financial means. 

Our Integrated Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due 
regard to the above.  

 
Glossary of terms:  

Acronym Expansion 

BAME Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 

CoL Continuity of Learning 

SCASEN Secondary Curriculum and School Evaluation Network 

SCTAG Swansea Curriculum, Teaching and Assessment Group 

CfW Curriculum for Wales 

RSE Relationships and Sexuality Education 

RVE Religion, Values and Ethics 

SACRE Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 
Background papers: None 
Appendices:  None 

Page 7



Education Scrutiny Performance Panel 
Work Programme 2021/2022 

 

All meetings will be held remotely for foreseeable future 

Date Items to be discussed Who 

Meeting 1 
24 Jun 21 
 

1. Harassment in School - deferred 
2. Covid Recovery and key issues affecting Education 

moving forward 
3. Planning 2021/2022 Council year in Education Scrutiny – 

Draft Work Programme (for discussion by Panel) 

Cllr R Smith 
H Morgan Rees 
 
Panel 

Meeting 2 
15 Jul 21 
 

1. Behaviour Strategy, how associated delegated spend to 
schools is being used – speak to two secondary schools 
(Panel identified this item for scrutiny pre Covid)  

2. Feedback from ERW Scrutiny Councillor Group 28 Jun21 

Pontarddulais, 
Bishop Gore 
 
Cllr L Jones 

Meeting 3 
1 Sep 21 

1. The New Estyn Regime and thematic reviews  
 
2. Update – Education Covid Recovery moving into new 

school year 
3. Update – Regional Scrutiny moving forward 

Estyn - 
confirmed 
Cllr R Smith 
H Morgan Rees 
 

Meeting 4 
30 Sep 21 
 

How are we improving schools in Swansea? (How are 
School Improvement Advisers supporting, evaluating and 
monitoring schools in Swansea). To also include:  
Sharing good practice, supporting eFSM pupils and 
readiness for the City Deal. 

Cllr R Smith,  
Lead School 
Improvement 
Advisers 

Meeting 5 
21 Oct 21 

1. Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (A new 10 year plan is 
being developed, an overview of requirements and the 
progress made so far) 

2. New Curriculum progress update 

Cllr R Smith 
H Morgan Rees 

Meeting 6 
18 Nov 21 

School Scrutiny Session 1 – Morriston Comprehensive 
School - Confirmed 

Headteacher 
and Chair of 
Governors 

Meeting 7 
9 Dec 21 

1. Performance against identified education priorities (RAG)  
(Overview and then Cabinet Member Q&A) 

2. Swansea Skills Partnership update 

Cllr R Smith 
H Morgan Rees 
 

Meeting 8 
20 Jan 22 

School Scrutiny Session 2 – Penyrheol Comprehensive 
School - TBC 

Headteacher 
and Chair of 
Governors 

Meeting 9 
14 Feb 22 
(3.00pm) 

Annual Budget as it relates to Educations matters (Annual 
item) 

Cllr R Smith 
H Morgan Rees 

Meeting 10 
24 Mar 22 

Updates on watching brief items: 
1. Additional Learning Needs Reform  
2. New Curriculum  
3. Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) 
 
4. End of year report - Education Scrutiny 

Cllr R Smith 
H Morgan Rees 
 
 
 
Cllr L Jones 

1. To schedule in: a visit to new pupil referral unit Maes Derw (when possible)   
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	4 Cofnodion
	Minutes

	8 Y diweddaraf am y cwricwlwm newydd gan gynnwys cynnydd o ran ei weithredu
	9 Cynllun Gwaith 2021-2022

